Office of the Clerk Supreme Court Court of Appeals

#### **COVER LETTER**

TO: MS. KATHY GILLIS, CLERK
MISSISSIPPI SUPREME COURT/COURT OF APPEALS
P.O.BOX 249
JACKSON, MS. 39205-0249

FROM; JOSEPH R. TRISTE #146798 CCRCF POD #4 BUNK #39 120 LANDCASTER CIRCLE HOUSTON, MS. 38851

DATE: SEPTEMBER 10TH 2010

RE: FILING OF APPELLANT'S BRIEF IN NO. 2010-CP-0086

DEAR MS. GILLIS,

PLEASE BE ADVISED THAT ENCLOSED IS AN ORIGINAL AND THREE(3) EXECUTED COPIES OF THE ABOVE REFERENCED CAUSE AND NUMBERED ACTION TO BE FILEDIN YOUR MOST USUAL MANNER.

#### STATEMENT OF ISSUES

PROPOSITION 1:

APPELLANT'S SENTENCE IS ILLEGAL BECAUSE OF THE FIVE(5) YEARS OF POST-RELEASE SUPERVISION ADDED TO HIS TWENTY-FIVE YEAR SENTENCE FOR BURGLARY EXCEEDS THE AUTHORIZED MAXIMUM ALLOWED BY LAW FOR THE FELONY COMMITTED. ALSO, FINE OF \$1000 IMPOSED WAS ILLEGAL.

#### STATEMENT OF THE CASE

ON OR ABOUT DECEMBER 20, 2007, DURING THE TERM THAT THE GRAND JURY MET IN ITAWAMBA COUNTY, INDICTMENTS WERE ISSUED AGAINST JOSEPH RICHARD TRISTE, HIS DAUGHTER, JAMIE DIANE TRISTE, AKA "JAMIE KIEFER" AMANDA JEAN BELL, RIKKI MARIE SWANN, AND CHARMAIN MARIE TRISTE. CHARGES INCLUDED BURGLARY OF A DWELLING, KIDNAPPING, ARMED ROBBERY, CONSPIRACY TO COMMITT BURGLARY, AND ACCESSORY AFTER THE FACT OF BURGLARY. (SEE R/A PAGES 19-21) THEREAFTER, ON OR ABOUT FEBRUARY 23,2009, THE APPELANT WAS CONVICTED OF "BURGLARY OF A DWELLING" IN VIOLATION OF MISS. CODE ANN. 97-17-23 AFTER PEADING GUILTY, AND SENTENCED TO A TERM

REFERNCES TO THE TRANSCRIPTS PAGE WILL BE IN THE FORMAT OF "R/A" FOLLOWED BY THE PAGE NUMBER. MISSISSIPPI PRACTICE IS TO REFER TO THE VOLUME CONTAINING PLEADINGS AND MOTIONS AS "CLERK'S PAPERS" OR "C.P." FOLLOWED BY THE PAGE, ADDITIONALLY, EXHIBITS OF RECIEPTS FOR FINES PAID WILL BE INCLUDED, THAT WERE NOT PREVIOUSLY AVAILABLE. "R/A" STANDS FOR "RECORD OF APPEAL"

OF TWENTY-FIVE (25) YEARS IN THE CUSTODY OF THE MISSISSIPPI DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS (M.D.O.C.) WITH SEVENTEEN (17) YEARS SUSPENDED, LEAVING A TOTAL OF EIGHT (8) YEARS TO SERVE. FURTHER, APPELLANT WAS SENTENCED TO AN ADDITIONAL FIVE (5) YEARS OF POST-RELEASE SUPERVISION ADDED TO HIS ALREADY TWENTY-FIVE (25) YEAR BURGLARY SENTENCE, TOTALLING THIRTY(30) YEARS. THEREBY THIS WOULD MAKE APPELLANT'S SENTENCE ILLEGAL IN THAT IT EXCEEDS THE AUTHORIZED MAXIMUM ALLOWED BY LAW FOR THE BURGLARY CHARGE BY FIVE (5) YEARS.

ADDITIONALLY, THE COURT IMPOSESD A ONE-THOUSAND DOLLAR (\$1000) FINE, WHICH NOWHERE IN THE STATUTE STATES ANYTHING ABOUT A FINE.

### SUMMARY OF THE ARGUMENT

APPELLANT ASSERTS THAT THE SUMMARY OF THE ARGUMENT IS ACCURATE AND CLEAR. DUE TO THE FACT THAT THE TRIAL COURT WAS WITHOUT THE BOUNDS OF THE LAW WHEN IT SENTENCED THE APPELLANT TO FIVE(5) YEARS OF POST-RELEASE SUPERVISION. BECAUSE THAT WOULD ADD UP TO A TOTAL OF THIRTY (30) YEARS FOR THE "BURGLARY OF A DWELLING" THAT APPELLANT IS SERVING TIME ON.

APPELLANT ASSERTS FRUTHER THAT "BURGLARY OF A DWELLING" PURSUANT TO M MISS.CODE ANN 97-17-23 ONLY IS PUNISHABLE BY UP TO TWENTY-FIVE (25) YEARS IN PRISON, IN WHICH HE WAS SENTENCED TO. HOWEVER, THE TRIAL COURT ADDED AN ADDITIONAL FIVE (5) YEARS TO THAT SENTENCE WHEN IT IMPOSED A TERM OF POST-RELEASE SUPERVISION ON THE APPELLANT PURSUANT TO MISSISSIPPI CODE

ANN. 47-7-34. THUS THE SENTENCE IS ILLEGAL.

## **ARGUMENT**

APPELLANT'S SENTENCE IS ILLEGAL BECAUSE OF THE FIVE (5) YEARS

OF POST-RELEASE SUPERVISION ADDED TO HIS TWENTY-FIVE (25)

YEAR SENTENCE FOR BURGLARY EXCEEDS THE MAXIMUM ALLOWED BY

LAW FOR THE FELONY COMMITTED, AND FINE OF \$1000 IMPOSED WAS ILLEGAL.

APPELLANT ASSERTS THAT HIS SENTENCE IS ILLEGAL DUE TO THE FACT THAT THE TRIAL COURT UNLAWFULLY SENTENCED HIM TO AN ADDITIONAL FIVE (5) YEAR SENTENCE OF POST-RELEASE SUPERVISION ADDED TO HIS TWENTY-FIVE (25) YEAR SENTENCE FOR "BURGLARY OF A DWELLING".

APPELLANT ASSERTS THAT WITH THE FIVE(5) YERS OF POST-RELEASE SUPERVISION ADDED TO HIS "BURGLRY OF A DWELLING" IN WHICH HE WAS SENTENCED TO TWENTY-FIVE (25) YEARS, WOULD TOTAL A THIRTY (30) YEAR SENTENCE.

APPELLANT ASSERTS THAT THE STATUTE UNDER WHICH HE AS CONVICTED FOR "BURGLARY: BREAKING AND ENTERING INHABITED DWELLING; HOME INVASION" MISS. CODE ANN.SECTION 97-17-23(1) ITS VIVIDLY CLEAR.

#### IT STATES THAT:

(1) "EVERY PERSON WHO SHALL BE CONVICTED OF BREAKING AND ENTERING THE DWELLING HOUSE OF INNER DOOR OF SUCH DWELLING HOUSE OF ANOTHER, WHETHER ARMED WITH A DEADLY WEOPON OR NOT, AND WHETHER THERE SHALL BE AT THE TIME SOME HUMAN BEING IN SUSCH DWELLING HOUSE OR NOT, WITH INTENT TO COMMITT SOME CRIME THEREIN, SHALL BE PUNISHED BY COMMITTMENT TO THE CUSTODY OF THE DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS FOR NOT LESS THAN THREE(3) YEARS NOR MORE THAN TWENTY-FIVE (25) YEARS."

APPELLANT ASSERTS THAT AFTER HE WAS SENTENCED ON THE "BURGLARY OF A DWELLING" TO TWENTY-FIVE (25) YEARS, HE WAS FURTHER SENTENCED TO FIVE (5) YEARS OF POST-RELEASE SUPERVISION PURSUANT TO MISS. CODE ANN 47-7-34 WHICH READS IN PART:

"...HOWEVER, THE TOTAL NUMBER OF YEARS OF INCARCERATION PLUS THE TOTAL NUMBER OF YEARS OF POST-RELEASE SUPERVISION SHALL NOT EXCEED THE MAXIMUM AUTHORIZED TO BE IMPOSED BY LAW FOR THE FELONY COMMITTED."

APPELLANT ASSERTS THAT THE TRIAL COURT FURTHER ERRED WHEN IT DENIED HIS MOTION FOR POST-CONVICTION RELIEF (R/A PAGES 199-200)

APPELLANT ASSERTS THAT THE LAW IS VERY CLEAR THAT A CRIMINAL DEFENDANT CAN NOT BE SENTENCED TO A TERM OF ANY AMOUNT OF POST-RELEASE SUPERVISION PURSUANT TO MISS.CODE ANN 47-7-34 WHEN APPELLANT HAD ALREADY BEEN SENTENCED TO THE MAXIMUM THAT WAS AUTHORIZED BY LAW PURSUANT TO MISS. CODE ANN 97-17-23 FOR "BURGLARY OF A DWELLING" WITH THAT BEING TWENTY-FIVE (25) YEARS. ADDING FIVE (5) YEARS OF POST-RELEASE SUPERVISION TO THAT WOULD TOTAL THIRTY(30) YEARS.

APPELLANT ASSERTS THAT IF RELEASED FROM PRISON AND HAVING TO SERVE ANY AMOUNT OF TIME ON POST-RELEASE SUI=PERVISION, THEN IS BY CHANCE HE VIOLATES THE TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF HIS POST-RELEASE SUPERVISION. THEN HE WOULD HAVE SEVENTEED (17) MORE YEARS OF THAT SUSPENDED PROTION OF THE BURGLARY SENTENCE TO SERVE.

APPELLANT ASSERTS THAT HIS CLAIM OF AN ILLEGAL SENTENCE IS CLARIFIED IN ETHRIDGE VS. STATE 800 SO. 2D 1221 (MISS. 2001). WHICH STATES:

" THE APPELLATE COURT HELD THAT THE RIGHT TO A LEGAL SENTENCE WAS A FUNDAMENTAL RIGHT...."

APPELLANT ASSERTS THAT THIS IS A BLATAN VIOLATION OF THE LAW, THAT HIS SENTENCE IS ILLEGAL, AND THUS, MUST BE VACATED AS TO THE FIVE(5) YEARS OF POST-RELEASE SUPERVISION.

### CONCLUSION

WHEREFORE, PREMISES CONSIDERED, APPELLANT, JOSEPH R. TRISTE BELIEVES
THAT HE HAS KEPT HIS CLAIM OF AN ILLEGAL SENTENCE CONCISE AND BRIEF, AND
WOULD ASK THIS HONORABLE COURT TO GRANT THE FOLLOWING:

- A) REVERSE AND REMAND THE DENIAL OF APPELLANT'S MOTION FOR POST-CONVICTION RELIEF BACK TO THE TRIAL COURT OF ITAWAMBA COUNTY, BY GRANTING THIS APPEAL, AND/OR
- B) ORDER THAT THE FIVE(5) YEARS OF POST-RELEASE SUPERVISION BE VACATED FROM APPELLANT'S SENTENCE DUE TO THE FACT THAT WITH IT BEING ADDED TO THE TWENTY-FIVE(25) YEAR BURGLARY SENTENCE, WOULD TOTAL THIRTY(30) YEARS, WHICH EXCEEDS THE AUTHORIZED MAXIMUM ALLOWED BY LAW FOR THE FOLONY COMMITTED: AND
- C) GRANT ANY FURTHER RELIEF THAT THIS HONORABLE COURT MAY DEEM APPELLANT IS ENTITLED TO BY LAW, INCLUDING DISMISSING THE \$1000 FINE THAT WAS IMPOSED AND ORDERING THE TRIAL COURT TO REFUND THE \$500 DOLLARS ALREADY PAID THAT WAS UNLAWFULLY IMPOSED. (SEE EXHIBIT "A")