IN THE SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF MISSISSIPPI

JOSEPH R. TRISTE

APPELLANT

VS.

NO. 2010-CP-0864

STATE OF MISSISSIPPI

APPELLEE

BRIEF FOR THE APPELLEE

APPELLEE DOES NOT REQUEST ORAL ARGUMENT

JIM HOOD, ATTORNEY GENERAL

BY: JOHN R. HENRY

SPECIAL ASSISTANT ATTORNEY GENERAL

MISSISSIPPI BAR NO

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL POST OFFICE BOX 220 JACKSON, MS 39205-0220 TELEPHONE: (601) 359-3680

STATEMENT OF THE CASE

This is an appeal against an Order of the Circuit Court of Itawamba County, Mississippi in which relief was denied on the prisoner's motion in post - conviction relief.

STATEMENT OF FACTS

The prisoner entered pleas of guilty to burglary and kidnaping, and he was sentenced, as to the burglary conviction to a term of twenty - five years imprisonment, with eight years to serve, seventeen years suspended upon five years post - release supervision. As to the kidnaping conviction, the prisoner was sentenced to a term of thirty years imprisonment, to be served consecutively with the sentence imposed in the burglary conviction, all thirty years to be suspended. The court also imposed a fine and costs. (R. Vol. 1, pg. 47; 52 - 53). The prisoner then went on, later, in a sentencing hearing for one of his co-defendants, to describe what he had done in this peculiar case. (r. Vol. 1, pp 97 - 119).

The prisoner, in November of 2009, filed a motion in post - conviction relief. His claim for

1

relief consisted of a claim that the five - year period set for post - release supervision amounted to an illegal sentence. It was said that the twenty - five year sentence together with a five - year period of post - release supervision exceeded the maximum sentence imposable upon conviction of burglary of an occupied dwelling. (R. Vol. 1, pp. 4 - 12).

By order filed on 9 March 2010, relief was denied on the prisoner's motion, without an evidentiary hearing. (R. Vol. 2, pp. 199 - 200). While the prisoner failed to file a notice of appeal in a timely fashion, the circuit court granted an out - of - time appeal. (R. Vol. 2, pg. 220).

STATEMENT OF ISSUES

1. DID THE CIRCUIT COURT ERR IN DENYING RELIEF UPON THE PRISONER'S MOTION IN POST - CONVICTION RELIEF WITHOUT AN EVIDENTIARY HEARING?

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

THAT THE CIRCUIT COURT DID NOT ERR IN DENYING RELIEF UPON THE PRISONER'S MOTION IN POST - CONVICTION RELIEF WITHOUT AN EVIDENTIARY HEARING

ARGUMENT

THAT THE CIRCUIT COURT DID NOT ERR IN DENYING RELIEF UPON THE PRISONER'S MOTION IN POST - CONVICTION RELIEF WITHOUT AN EVIDENTIARY HEARING

The prisoner was sentenced to a term of twenty - five years imprisonment, with eight years incarceration and seventeen years for which execution of sentence was suspended. A period of five years of post - release supervision was also ordered. A fine was also imposed upon the prisoner in the amount of one thousand dollars. (R. Vol. 1, pp. 13 - 14).

The prisoner claims that the period set for post - release supervision, together with the sentence imposed, exceeded the maximum penalty for the felony of burglary of an occupied dwelling. Under Miss. Code Ann. Section 97-17-23 (Rev. 2010), the maximum period of imprisonment is set at twenty - five years.

Under Miss. Code Ann. Section 47-7-34(1) (Rev. 2004), a period set for post - release supervision together with a period of incarceration may not exceed the maximum sentence for the crime committed. The prisoner, however, was actually sentenced to serve only eight years imprisonment. That being so, the five - year period set for post - release supervision, added to that period of incarceration, did not exceed the statutory maximum. The circuit court therefore did not impose a sentence in excess of that provided by statute. *Brown v. State*, 923 So.2d 258 (Miss. Ct. App. 2006).

While it does not appear that the imposition of a fine of one thousand dollars is a penalty that may be imposed under the provisions of Section 97-17-23, the authority to impose such a fine is found at Miss. Code Ann. Section 99-19-32 (Rev. 2007). *Cochran v. State*, 969 So.2d 119, 122 (Miss. Ct. App. 2007).

A circuit court may deny relief on a motion in post - conviction relief where it plainly appears from the face of the motion, annexed exhibits and the prior proceedings in the case that the movant is not entitled to relief. Miss. Code Ann. Section 99-39-11(2) (Rev. 2010). It is quite clear that the prisoner was entitled to no relief on the grounds alleged by him in his motion in the circuit court; the circuit court was clearly correct in denying relief.

CONCLUSION

The Order of the circuit court denying relief on the prisoner's motion in post - conviction relief should be affirmed.